
Agenda Executive Corporation Meeting June 12, 2017 

Date: June 12, 2017; Immediately following 3pm CST Council Meeting 

Location: Sheraton Bay Point, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, Florida 32408 

Meeting Room: St. Andrews A 

Conference Call (904)512-0115, Conference Code: 412463 

Call to Order .................................................................................................................... Sharon Bock 

Roll Call .............................................................................................................................. CCOC Staff 

Approval of Agenda and Welcome ................................................................................. Sharon Bock 

1) Swearing in of New Executive Council Members……………………………………………….……Sharon Bock 

2) Report from the Chair…………………………………..………………………………………………………..Sharon Bock 

3) Approve Minutes from June 27, 2016 Meeting……………………………………………….Stacy Butterfield 

4)   Treasurer’s Report .............................................................................................. Stacy Butterfield 
a. Financial Statement (Audit) CFY 15/16
b. CFY 15/16 End of Year Financial Report
c. CFY 16/17 Latest Financial Report

5)  Proposed Corporation Budget for CFY 17/18…………………………………………………...Stacy Butterfield 

6)  Tentative Council Meeting Dates for SFY 17/18  ............................................................ John Dew 

7) Election of CCOC Executive Committee………..………………………..……………….…………………..Joe Boyd 

8) Other Business



MINUTES 

FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION 

MONDAY, June 27, 2016 4:49 PM 

CCOC ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING 

Orlando, Florida 

The June 27, 2016 Annual Meeting of the Corporation of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations 

Corporation (CCOC) was called to order at 4:49 p.m., EST by Executive Council Chair Sharon Bock.   

ROLL CALL – Chair Bock asked Mary Baker, the Executive Assistant, to transfer over the roll from the 

Executive Council meeting since the roll was taken there.  

Chair Bock acknowledged that in this annual meeting every elected Clerk can participate. It is their 

meeting. The by-laws call for one annual meeting in which reports are basically gone over. She encouraged 

Clerks to feel free to ask questions or make any comments.    

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Clerk Burke made motion to approve the May 31, 2015 Corporation Meeting minutes. Clerk Inzer 

seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Chair Bock noted that #7 will be taken off since the election of the Executive Committee took place in the 

Executive Council meeting that preceded this meeting. Clerk O’Neil made a motion to approve the 

amended agenda. Seconded by Clerk Burke. Vote was taken and passed unanimously.   

CHAIR’S REPORT 

Chair Bock began her report from the Chair by saying how proud she is to serve. She also wanted to 

acknowledge the chairs of the different CCOC committees that served this year. She started by thanking 

Clerk Butterfield and her undying commitment to the budget process.  Next is Clerk Vick who led the Jury 

Process workgroup. Clerk Green has done an outstanding job in the development of the continuous 

workload methodology. She and her group are constantly looking at the performance measures. The 

Financial Analysis Workgroup is headed by Clerk Barbee then Kelly Connell. Clerk Timmann and the 

Legislative committee worked tirelessly. The Legislative workgroup has become active and was led by John 

Dew. They reported impacts and analytics on the various bills. Technology Funding workgroup was led by 

Clerk Doggett and then by Clerk Peacock. Chair Bock thanked her Vice-Chair Clerk Inzer. She noted that 

the CCOC would not be what it is today if it were not for Clerk Inzer’s detailed eye for finance. She 

acknowledged Clerk Burke and his great work as the Secretary/Treasurer. She thanked those that worked 

on the North Highland workgroup. They were Clerk Butterfield, Clerk Green, Clerk Rushing, Clerk 

Page 2 of 67



Thurmond, Clerk Timmann, and Clerk Inzer. On behalf of all the clerks, she thanked Clerk staff who serve 

on numerous workgroups. These staff members support the CCOC staff. She wanted to thank the CCOC 

staff that is led by John Dew, the Executive Director. She acknowledged Joe Boyd, General Counsel as well 

as Doug Isabelle, the Deputy Executive Director and Lisa Daws, Information Technology and Resource 

Director. She noted that the CCOC team deserves a big hand for the work that they do. The main issues 

this year has been funding, funding, funding. The Executive Council met five times. The Internal Audit was 

an unqualified clean opinion. It shows that what CCOC is doing is done properly. When she began as Chair 

there was a strategic planning meeting and there were three directions: communication, predictive 

funding model, and more concise data. She noted that we are moving in the right direction. We have 

continued to be transparent, we have improved communication with the Legislature and with the FCCC, 

and as you heard today we are refining our data.  Chair Bock concluded her report.  

TREASURER’S AND FINANCIAL REPORT 

Chair Bock called on Clerk Burke for the Treasurer’s Report. He moved to approve Agenda items #3, #4. 

and #5. He noted the Internal Audit was an unmodified opinion. The Treasurer’s report also shows we 

are in line with the spending. As far as the corporate budget it is a continuation budget. Clerk O’Neil 

seconded. Vote was taken and passed unanimously.  

PROPOSED DATES FOR THE 16/17 BUDGET YEAR 

Chair Bock asked Mr. Dew to report. He noted that the proposed dates are found on page 46. There is a 

meeting on July 28 here in Orlando. He would like to get with the FCCC and see what their dates are and 

coordinate the proposed dates to coincide with theirs for better attendance. Clerk Inzer proposed the 

motion to coordinate with the FCCC on dates. Clerk Ruvin seconded. Vote was taken and the motion 

passed.  

OTHER BUSINESS 

Clerk Inzer wanted to comment on CCOC’s staff on their timeliness, professionalism and dedication and 

support the clerks’ work. Clerk Butterfield thanked Clerk Inzer for helping her by being able to go to CCOC 

when she could not be in Tallahassee.  

Chair Bock asked if any of the clerks would like to speak.  Clerk Burke made a motion to adjourn. Seconded 

by Clerk Inzer.   

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 5:05 PM EST.  

 

Page 3 of 67



Agenda Item 4a Executive Corporation Meeting June 12, 2017  

Date: June 12, 2017 

Subject: CCOC Office CFY 15/16 Financial Statement 
 
 
Corporation Action: 
For Information Purposes and Corporation Membership Review 
 
Overview: 
Each year an independent audit is conducted to review the financials of the Corporation office.  The firm of 

Lanigan and Associates conducted a review of the financials for the twelve month period of October 1, 2015 

through September 30, 2016.   Lanigan provided their Independent Report to the CCOC Office in December.  

The report was provided to the CCOC Executive Council and accepted at their February 27th, 2017 meeting. 

The report is now attached for the Corporation membership review.  The audit did not identify any 

deficiencies in internal controls.  Further the audit disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 

matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  Finally, the audit revealed 

no need for a management letter with recommendations for improvement. 

 

Attachments:   

 

1. Corporation Financial Statements for County Fiscal Year October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016. 

Page 4 of 67



Page 5 of 67



Page 6 of 67



Page 7 of 67



Page 8 of 67



Page 9 of 67



Page 10 of 67



Page 11 of 67



Page 12 of 67



Page 13 of 67



Page 14 of 67



Page 15 of 67



Page 16 of 67



Page 17 of 67



Page 18 of 67



Page 19 of 67



Page 20 of 67



Page 21 of 67



Page 22 of 67



Page 23 of 67



Page 24 of 67



Page 25 of 67



Page 26 of 67



Page 27 of 67



Page 28 of 67



Page 29 of 67



Page 30 of 67



Page 31 of 67



Page 32 of 67



Page 33 of 67



Page 34 of 67



Page 35 of 67



Page 36 of 67



Page 37 of 67



Page 38 of 67



Page 39 of 67



Page 40 of 67



Page 41 of 67



Page 42 of 67



Page 43 of 67



Page 44 of 67



Page 45 of 67



Agenda Item 4b Executive Corporation Meeting June 12, 2017  

Date: June 12, 2017 

Subject: CCOC Office CFY 15/16 Final Financials 
 
 
Corporation Action: 
For Information Purposes and Corporation Membership Review. 
 
Overview: 
Last year the CCOC Office had vacancies which decreased our expenditures.  The Budget Director’s position 

remained unfilled for 11 months and the Database Administrator position for 7 months.  We filled the 

Budget Director’s position at the end of CFY 15/16 and reclassified the position as Budget and 

Communication’s Director at a higher salary. Likewise we will be reclassifying the Database Administrator 

position as well.  This is based on a recent organization study of the CCOC conducted by Evergreen 

Solutions, Inc.    

 

Attachments:   

1. Corporation CFY 15/16 end of year financials.   

Page 46 of 67



Year to Date (%) of Budget

Expenditures Expended

CCOC STAFF: $799,949.00 $59,584.46 $59,754.96 $59,417.31 $59,353.00 $56,617.77 $53,354.25 $77,519.15 $53,866.03 $54,467.04 $61,426.77 $54,879.66 $81,138.86 $731,379.26 91.43%

Executive Director $119,128.00 $9,927.33 $9,927.33 $9,927.33 $9,927.33 $9,927.33 $9,927.33 $9,927.33 $9,927.33 $9,927.33 $9,927.33 $9,927.33 $12,627.33 $121,827.96 102.27%

Deputy Executive Director $105,019.00 $8,580.00 $8,580.00 $8,580.00 $8,580.00 $8,580.00 $8,580.00 $8,580.00 $8,580.00 $8,751.58 $8,751.58 $8,751.58 $10,450.58 $105,345.32 100.31%

Information Systems Coordinator $79,500.00 $6,625.00 $6,625.00 $6,625.00 $6,625.00 $6,625.00 $6,625.00 $6,625.00 $6,625.00 $6,625.00 $6,625.00 $6,625.00 $9,525.00 $82,400.00 103.65%

Budget Director $85,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,083.33 $7,083.33 8.33%

Data Analyst $46,100.00 $3,675.00 $3,675.00 $3,675.00 $3,675.00 $3,675.00 $3,675.00 $3,675.00 $3,675.00 $3,841.67 $3,841.67 $3,841.67 $3,841.67 $44,766.68 97.11%

Budget Manager I $31,377.00 $2,614.75 $2,614.75 $2,614.75 $2,614.75 $2,614.75 $2,614.75 $2,614.75 $2,614.75 $2,614.75 $5,625.21 $2,614.75 $5,464.75 $37,237.46 118.68%

Budget Manager I $32,448.00 $2,600.00 $2,704.00 $2,704.00 $2,704.00 $2,704.00 $2,704.00 $2,704.00 $2,704.00 $2,704.00 $4,950.40 $2,704.00 $5,654.00 $37,540.40 115.69%

Database Administrator $47,250.00 $3,937.50 $3,937.50 $3,937.50 $3,937.50 $1,984.35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,734.35 37.53%

Executive Assistant/Human Resources $34,440.00 $2,707.50 $2,707.50 $2,707.50 $2,707.50 $2,707.50 $2,870.00 $2,870.00 $2,870.00 $2,870.00 $2,870.00 $2,870.00 $4,270.00 $35,027.50 101.71%

Internal Revenue(Corporation Responsibility) $50,000.00 $3,063.78 $3,064.74 $3,025.68 $3,008.47 $2,870.85 $2,740.41 $4,084.60 $2,724.34 $2,743.93 $3,162.14 $2,810.93 $4,466.87 $37,766.74 75.53%

Retirement, Benefits, Workers' Comp and Other $176,040.00 $15,853.60 $15,919.14 $15,620.55 $15,573.45 $14,928.99 $13,617.76 $36,438.47 $14,063.11 $14,388.78 $15,673.44 $14,734.40 $17,755.33 $204,567.02 116.20%

OPS STAFF: $22,000.00 $783.00 $473.00 $253.00 $264.00 $176.00 $130.17 $44.00 $0.00 $0.00 $209.00 $874.50 $929.50 $4,136.17 18.80%

GENERAL EXPENSES: $92,761.00 $5,267.00 $4,727.92 $4,703.13 $6,535.07 $4,840.84 $4,715.69 $6,138.93 $5,339.35 $11,858.43 $13,015.98 $8,009.64 $13,538.81 $88,690.79 95.61%

Rent (including Utilities) $47,761.00 $3,421.58 $3,451.58 $3,523.87 $3,372.77 $3,368.98 $3,342.60 $3,330.10 $3,353.07 $3,409.97 $3,437.88 $3,660.62 $3,181.20 $40,854.22 85.54%

Communications (+ Internet and Phone) $10,000.00 $964.01 $508.26 $534.06 $706.43 $759.12 $625.64 $595.02 $1,033.49 $1,212.88 $801.40 $2,030.50 $157.28 $9,928.09 99.28%

Equipment, Supplies and Other $35,000.00 $881.41 $768.08 $645.20 $2,455.87 $712.74 $747.45 $2,213.81 $952.79 $7,235.58 $8,776.70 $2,318.52 $10,200.33 $37,908.48 108.31%

TRAVEL: $60,400.00 $4,014.34 $4,158.13 $1,692.00 $2,144.80 $3,679.12 $5,281.58 $3,772.44 $2,123.80 $3,210.24 $10,369.70 $3,165.43 $4,107.79 $47,719.37 79.01%

STAFF TRAINING: $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $0.00 $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 4.00%

CONTRACTUAL EXPENSES: $282,454.00 $7,230.00 $13,211.25 $20,921.00 $6,257.50 $43,376.25 $3,980.00 $17,327.50 $12,488.75 $17,167.50 $23,617.50 $18,783.75 $14,152.50 $198,513.50 70.28%

General Counsel $111,000.00 $6,380.00 $5,680.00 $2,380.00 $3,920.00 $6,800.00 $2,700.00 $4,220.00 $4,542.50 $8,265.00 $1,902.50 $5,182.50 $4,717.50 $56,690.00 51.07%

FY 14-15 Survey, Reporting, and Other Services $160,454.00 $850.00 $7,531.25 $11,541.00 $2,337.50 $36,576.25 $1,280.00 $13,107.50 $7,946.25 $8,427.50 $21,715.00 $13,601.25 $9,435.00 $134,348.50 83.73%

Audit Services $11,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $475.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,475.00 67.95%

EDUCATION SERVICES $354,533.00 $49,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,000.00 $10,000.00 $50,000.00 $10,000.00 $13,500.00 $49,770.00 $0.00 $244,270.00 68.90%

$1,617,097.00 $0.00 $125,878.80 $92,325.26 $86,986.44 $74,554.37 $108,789.98 $119,461.69 $114,902.02 $123,817.93 $96,703.21 $122,138.95 $135,482.98 $113,867.46 $1,314,909.09 81.31%

*CCOC has the authority to revise category amounts due to established Legislative Budget Authority. (166.45)$        (3,643.94)$           (3,810.39)$           Fixed asset recon.

**Budget Categories have been adjusted to reflect approval by the Executive Council dated May 31, 2015. 121,972.50$ 110,223.52$        1,311,098.70$    Net operating expense.

SeptMar Apr May June July AugOct Nov Dec Jan Feb
Budget Category

Amount

TOTALS:

CCOC Budgetary Report 

County Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016

(October 1, 2015 - September 30, 2016)

ALL MONTHS 15-16 6/5/20175:31 PM

Page 47 of 67



Agenda Item 4c Executive Corporation Meeting June 12, 2017  

Date: June 12, 2017 

Subject: CCOC Office CFY 16/17 Financials through April 
 
 
Corporation Action: 
For Information Purposes and Corporation Membership Review. 
 
 
Overview: 
For the first 7 months of CFY 16/17 the Corporation office has expended just over 50% of its budget.  We 

expect to expend more during the last 5 months of the year as we now have all of our positions filled with 

the exception of one, and contractual expenses will be higher for educational services at the end of the 

year. 

 

Attachments:   

1. Corporation CFY 16/17 financials through April 2017.   
   

Page 48 of 67



Page 49 of 67



Agenda Item 5 Executive Corporation Meeting June 12, 2017  

Date: June 12, 2017 

Subject: CCOC Office CFY 17/18 Budget Request 
 
 
Corporation Action: 
Action Requested.  Approve 17/18 Corporation Budget and/or Process for Approval. 
 
Overview: 
For the last year three years the CCOC held off making a recommendation for the Corporation Office 
budget request until after the Clerks submitted their budget requests and the Budget Committee made 
recommendations to the Council for Clerk budgets.  The reason was the Council did not want to 
recommend a CCOC Office budget that was not in-line with the budget recommendations for the majority 
of Clerks statewide.  The Budget Committee will not be making recommendations on Clerks’ budgets to the 
Executive Council until sometime this summer.  Therefore a recommendation for approval of a CCOC 
Budget held prior to that may not be in-line with the budget recommendations for Clerk budgets.  
 
However, the CCOC Plan of Operations requires that the full Corporation membership vote annually on the 
CCOC budget.  The Corporation membership could agree to either revise the Plan of Operations language to 
allow the Executive Council to approve a budget at a later time or could in their motion provide the Council 
with authority for this year to later approve a budget request.   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 

Present a continuation budget request for review for the Corporation membership but provide that the 

Executive Council be given the authority to revisit the request after Clerks’ budget requests are approved 

for CFY 17/18.    

 

  

Attachments/Handouts: 

1. Current CCOC Budget for CFY 16/17 and Requested CFY 17/18 Budget.  Provided by line item detail. 

Page 50 of 67



                  (October 1, 2017 - September 30, 2018)

Budget Category Budget Category

Amount Amount

806,302.00$      CCOC STAFF: 831,436.40$                

$119,128.00 Executive Director
$119,128.00

$105,019.00 Deputy Executive Director $105,019.00

$79,500.00 IT Services Manager $79,500.00

$85,000.00 Budget and Communications Director $85,000.00

$46,100.00 Budget Manager II $60,255.00

$31,377.00 Budget Manager I $36,467.00

$32,448.00 Budget Manager I $46,865.00

$47,250.00 Data Quality Analyst $38,659.92

$34,440.00 Executive Assistant/Human Resources
$34,502.48

$50,000.00 Internal Revenue(Corporation Responsibility) $50,000.00

$176,040.00 Retirement, Benefits, Workers' Comp and Other $176,040.00

OPS STAFF: $22,000.00 OPS STAFF: $22,000.00

GENERAL EXPENSES: $86,408.00 GENERAL EXPENSES: $93,728.00

$41,408.00 Rent (including Utilities) $48,727.60

$10,000.00 Communications (+ Internet and Phone) $10,000.00

$35,000.00 Equipment, Supplies and Other $35,000.00

TRAVEL: $60,400.00 TRAVEL: $60,400.00

STAFF TRAINING: $5,000.00 STAFF TRAINING: $5,000.00

CONTRACTUAL EXPENSES: $282,454.00 CONTRACTUAL EXPENSES: $249,999.60

$111,000.00 General Counsel $111,000.00

$160,454.00 FY 17-18 Survey, Reporting, and Other Services $127,999.60

$11,000.00 Audit Services $11,000.00

EDUCATION SERVICES: $354,533.00 EDUCATION SERVICES: $354,533.00

$1,617,097.00 TOTALS: $1,617,097.00

FY 16-17 Survey, Reporting, and Other Services 

Audit Services

Deputy Executive Director

Information Systems Coordinator

Budget Director

Equipment, Supplies and Other

General Counsel

Database Administrator

CCOC Budget Request County Fiscal Year 2017-18

TOTALS:

CCOC Budget County Fiscal Year 2016 - 2017

(October 1, 2016 - September 30, 2017)

Data Analyst

Budget Manager I

Budget Manager I

Executive Assistant/Human Resources

Internal Revenue(Corporation Responsibility)

Retirement, Benefits, Workers' Comp and Other

Rent (including Utilities)

Communications (+ Internet and Phone)

CCOC STAFF:             

Executive Director

Page 51 of 67



Agenda Item 6 Executive Corporation Meeting June 12, 2017  

Date: June 12, 2017 

Subject: Tentative Meeting Dates for 17-18 
 
 
Corporation Action: 
Review Calendar of tentative meeting dates. 
 
 
Overview: 
The CCOC Plan of Operation in Section 1.5 requires that at the annual Corporation meeting the Council shall 

establish a schedule of all regular meetings for the coming year.  Historically, the CCOC has attempted to 

arrange all Council meetings with the FCCC training schedule in order to make it more convenient for Clerks 

and staff to attend meetings.  However in many instances the FCCC training calendar has not been set for 

the full upcoming year when we have the annual Corporation meeting.  Therefore, the Council usually 

provides a list of tentative meeting dates. 

We contacted the FCCC and they provided us a tentative calendar on June 5th.  (Attached.) Below are the 

potential meeting dates which could be subject to change. 

July-August, 2017- Dependent on the approval of SB 2506 the Council will need to determine which dates 

to meet to determine the CFY 17/18 Clerks’ budgets.   

October 9th or 10th, 2017- Executive Council Meeting.  Location: Wyndham Grand at Bonnet Creek, Orlando.  

The meeting would take place prior to the 2017 Fall Conference. 

February ?, 2018- Executive Council Meeting.  Location and date TBD.  This would be in association with the 

FCCC Winter Conference which has not been scheduled yet. 

June 25th or 26th, 2018- Executive Council Meeting.  Hilton, West Palm Beach.  The meeting would take 

place prior to the 2018 Summer Conference.  

 

Attachments:   Draft FCCC 2017-18 Calendar of Events. 

Page 52 of 67



 

2017-18 CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
July 
 
July 13 Summer Series: Human Resource Management   WebEx – 11 a.m.-12:15 p.m. 
 (Part 1) 
 
July 17 FDLE CJJIS Council   Jacksonville, 9 a.m. 
   
July 18-21                FDLE CJIS Symposium   Jacksonville 
  
July 18 2017 Court Op Statewide Partners Regional Workshop #1 TBD 
 2017 Clerk to the Board Regional Workshop #1    
   
July 19 2017 Court Op Statewide Partners Regional Workshop #2 TBD 
 2017 Clerk to the Board Regional Workshop #2    
 
July 20 Summer Series: Human Resource Management   WebEx – 11 a.m.-12:15 p.m. 
 (Part 2)  
 
July 26 FCCC Executive Committee    WebEx – 10 a.m. 
 

August 
 
August 2-3 Florida Courts Technology Commission   Tallahassee  
 
August 8 2017 Court Op Statewide Partners Regional Workshop #3 TBD 
 2017 Clerk to the Board Regional Workshop #3    
 
August 9 2017 Court Op Statewide Partners Regional Workshop #4 TBD 
 2017 Clerk to the Board Regional Workshop #4    
    
August 10 2017 A & C Report WebEx   WebEx – 10-11 a.m. 
 CLERICUS, Creative Solutions, CourtView 
 
August 10 2017 Court Op Statewide Partners Regional Workshop #5 Plantation on Crystal River 
 2017 Clerk to the Board Regional Workshop #5   Crystal River, FL 34429 
       
August 16 FCCC Board of Directors (In-Person)   TBD 
 
August 21-24 New Clerk Academy Module #4   Marriott Hollywood Beach 
 Auditing, Reporting & Technology   Hollywood, FL 
 
August 23 2017 A & C Report WebEx   WebEx – 10-11 a.m. 
 Makeup Session 
 
August 24-25 Florida Trust Summer Seminar   Marriott Hollywood Beach 
    Hollywood, FL 

 

Page 53 of 67



August 31 August Monthly Update   WebEx – 10 a.m. 
 

September 
 
September (TBD) Florida Local Government Investment Trust Seminar  TBD 
    Jacksonville 
   
September 6 2017 Technology Regional Workshop #1   Sheraton Bay Point 
 2017 Records Management/Admin Regional Workshop #1 
 
September 8 2017 Technology Regional Workshop #2   TBD 
 2017 Records Management/Admin Regional Workshop #2 
 
September 12 2017 Technology Regional Workshop #3   TBD 
 2017 Records Management/Admin Regional Workshop #3 
 
September 13 2017 Technology Regional Workshop #4   TBD 
 2017 Records Management/Admin Regional Workshop #4 
  
September 14 2017 Technology Regional Workshop #5   TBD 
 2017 Records Management/Admin Regional Workshop #5   
 
September 20 FCCC Executive Committee    WebEx – 10 a.m. 
 
September 28 September Monthly Update   WebEx – 10 a.m. 
   
 

October 
 
October 9 FCCC Board of Directors (In-Person)   Orlando 
 
October 11-13 2017 Fall Conference   Wyndham Grand Resort  
 Ethics, Executive, Records, Technology   Bonnet Creek 
    Orlando, FL 32821 
    
October 25-26 Florida Courts Technology Commission   Howey-in-the-Hills  
 
October Monthly Update will not be held in October due to Fall Conference 
   

November 
 
November 9 FCCC Executive Committee   WebEx – 10 a.m. 
 
November 30 November Monthly Update   WebEx – 10 a.m. 
    

December 
 
December 4-7 New Clerk Academy Module #5   Celebration/Orlando  
 Civil Court   Area/Pinellas 
     
December 7 FCCC Executive Committee   WebEx – 10 a.m. 
 
December Monthly Update will not be held in December due to Holidays 
  

Page 54 of 67



2018 CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
January 
   
January 9 2018 Legislative Session Begins  
  
January 11 FCCC Board of Directors (In-Person)   TBD 
   
January 12 Legislative Update   WebEx – 9:30 a.m. 
    
January 17 CJJIS Council Meeting   Tallahassee, 9 a.m. 
 
January 19 Legislative Update   WebEx – 9:30 a.m. 
 
January 26 January Monthly Update/Legislative Update   WebEx – 9:30 a.m. 
 

February 
  
February  2018 Winter Conference (Date/Site TBD)   TBD 

 
February FCCC Board of Directors (In-Person)   TBD 
 (Will be held in conjunctions with 2018 Winter Conference) 
   
February 2 Legislative Update   WebEx – 9:30 a.m. 
 
February 9 Legislative Update   WebEx – 9:30 a.m. 
 
February 16 Legislative Update   WebEx – 9:30 a.m. 
   
February 23 Legislative Update   WebEx – 9:30 a.m. 
  
February Monthly Update will not be held in February due to Winter Conference 
 

March 
 
March 2 Legislative Update   WebEx – 9:30 a.m. 
 
March 9 2018 Legislative Session Ends 
 
March 9 Legislative Update   WebEx – 9:30 a.m. 
 
March 12-15 New Clerk Academy Module #6   TBD  
 Criminal Court    
 
March 22 FCCC Executive Committee   WebEx – 10 a.m. 
 
March 28 March Monthly Update   WebEx – 10 a.m. 
 
 

April 
   
April 11 FCCC Board of Directors (In-Person)   TBD 
   
April 26 April Monthly Update   WebEx – 10 a.m. 

Page 55 of 67



 
May 
 
May 3 FCCC Executive Committee   WebEx – 10 a.m. 
 
 

May 7-10 New Clerk Academy Module #7   Plantation on Crystal River 
 Records and Information Management   Crystal River, FL 34429 
 
May 19-22 GFOA 2018 Annual Conference   Convention Center 
    Los Angeles, CA 
 
May 24 May Monthly Update   WebEx – 10 a.m. 
 

June 
 
June 13-16 Florida Bar Annual Convention   Hilton Orlando Bonnet Creek 
    Orlando 
 
June 16-20 FGFOA 2018 Annual Conference   Marriott World Center 
    Orlando 
 
June 26-28 2018 Summer Conference   Hilton West Palm Beach 
 Executive, Courts, Technology, HR/Admin   West Palm Beach, FL, 33401 
 
 
  
 FCCC Clerk trainings 
 
 FCCC Clerk meetings 
 
 Clerk associated meetings and events 
  

Page 56 of 67



Agenda Item 8 Executive Corporation Meeting June 12, 2017  

Date: June 12, 2017 

Subject: Other Business: CCOC Plan of Operation 
 
 
Corporation Action: 
Review Executive Council Recommendations for Plan of Operation revisions. 
 
 
Overview: 
The last time the CCOC Plan of Operation was revised was in 2013.  At the February 27th CCOC Executive 

Council meeting it was announced by Vice-Chair Clerk Burke that he would be reviewing the Plan to 

determine if there should be any updates and/or revisions since it had been almost 4 years since they were 

last reviewed.  He asked that all Clerks please contact him if they had any suggestions.  He stated he would 

be bringing any suggested changes back to the next Executive Council meeting. 

The CCOC Executive Council will be reviewing the suggested revisions and providing recommendations at 

their June 12th meeting.  

 

Attachments:   Revised CCOC Plan of Operations- with mark-ups indicated. 

Page 57 of 67



 

PLAN OF OPERATION 

 

FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION 

 

ARTICLE I 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

Section 1-1: Name  
 

The name of the Corporation shall be the Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation.  

 

Section 1-2: Establishment  
 

The Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation, hereinafter known as “Corporation”, is 

established under Section 28.35, Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time. The statutory 

duties assigned to the Corporation shall be performed by the Executive Council. Any future 

reference to the Executive Council in this document shall be referred to as the “Council”.  

 

Section 1-3: Legal Structure  
 

A. The Corporation is established as a public corporation organized to perform those functions 

specified in statute and delineated herein.  

 

B. Membership in the Corporation shall be the Clerks of the Circuit Court who shall hold their 

position and authority in an ex officio capacity.  

 

C. Corporation Plan of Operation shall be adopted by the members and may be amended by a 

majority vote of the Corporation members at the annual meeting of the Corporation held 

pursuant to provisions herein. Plan of Operation may not contradict the statutory purpose, 

construction, operation, or scope of duties/authority of the Corporation.  

 

Section 1-4: Corporation Powers and Duties  
 

The duties of the Corporation shall include:  

 

A. The functions assigned to the Corporation, as defined in s. 27.52, 28.35, and s.28.36,, 28.47, 

57.082, and 318.18  Florida Statutes.  

 

B. Adopting a Plan of Operation.  

 

C. Conducting the election of an Executive Council.  

 

D. Recommending to the Legislature changes in the amounts of the various court-related service 

charges, fines, fees and costs established by law to ensure reasonable and adequate funding of 

the Clerks of Court in the performance of their court-related functions. 

Page 58 of 67



  

E. Performing the functions specified in sections 28.35 and 28.36, Florida Statutes.  

 

F. Developing and certifying a uniform system of workload measures and clerk workload 

performance standards as set forth in law and defined by the membership of the Corporation. 

 

G. Reviewing, certifying and recommending proposed budgets using the methodology set forth 

in law.  

 

H. Submitting its proposed budget and the information described in 28.35(2)(f), F.S., along with 

proposed budgets for each Clerk of Court, to the Legislative Budget Commission.  

 

I. Developing and conducting Clerk education programs.  

 

J. Submitting an audited annual financial statement to the Auditor General and such other entities 

as may be  if required designated by law.  

 

K. Hiring staff and paying other expenses, as necessary, to perform the responsibilities and 

duties of the Corporation as described by law.  

 

 

Section 1-5: Corporation Meetings  
 

Meetings of the Corporation shall be governed by the following provisions:  

 

A. The Corporation shall hold an annual business meeting each year and such other meetings as 

deemed necessary by the call of the Council or upon the petition to the Council by twenty-two 

(22) or more members of the Corporation. At the annual business meeting the Council shall 

establish a recommend a tentative schedule of all regular meetings for the coming year. In the 

name of efficiency and economy, the Corporation will try to coordinate its meetings with the 

meetings of the Florida Court Clerks & Comptrollers. 

 

B. Notice of the Corporation’s annual meeting shall be given thirty (30) days prior to the meeting 

date. The agenda shall advise the members, in detail, the substance and nature of each agenda 

item and will be provided seven (7) days prior to the annual meeting. For other meetings of the 

Corporation, as provided in Section 1-5 A, notices shall be provided a minimum of seven (7) 

days prior to such meetings with agenda provisions as previously noted.  

 

C. All meetings of the Council and the annual meeting of the Corporation shall be open to the 

public pursuant to Florida law.  

 

D. Proceedings of Corporation meetings shall be governed by the most current edition of 

“Robert’s Rules of Order” with detailed minutes of all proceedings taken and maintained by the 

Secretary/Treasurer. Said minutes, upon approval of the Corporation, shall be placed on and 

maintained by the Corporation on the Corporation’s website for public access.  

 

Page 59 of 67



 

ARTICLE II 

COUNCIL 

 

Section 2-1: Duties and Responsibilities  
 

The Council shall perform on behalf of the Corporation, those duties and responsibilities 

assigned by statute and the plan of operation to the Corporation. Such duties and responsibilities 

shall be administered in accordance with the Plan of Operation approved by the Corporation and 

as such may be subsequently amended as provided in Section 1-3 C. The Council shall develop 

for its own internal use, administrative, personnel, and purchasing policies for the Corporation 

Office.  

 

The Council shall have standing committees to help more efficiently carry out statutory duties. 

Ad hoc committees may be established as determined necessary by the Chairman. Summary 

minutes of all proceedings of meetings of the standing committees shall be taken and maintained 

by CCOC staff and placed and maintained on the Corporation website for public access. Minutes 

are not required to be taken at the ad hoc committee meetings.  

Standing committees shall include:  

 

Finance and Budget Committee: The primary duties of the Budget and Finance Committee shall 

be to: Develop budget forms and instructions for Clerks; Inform and educate Clerks on the 

budget process; Request Clerks to submit a budget; Develop budgetary evaluation criteria; 

Review Clerks proposed budgets consistent with the evaluation criteria; Recommend to the 

Council a proposed budget for all Clerks and; Recommend such amendments to existing or 

proposed budgets as may be required. The Committee shall also be responsible for presenting the 

budget before the Legislature, Governor or their staff as needed. The Committee shall identify 

Legislative problems and solutions and recommend them to the CCOC Legislative Committee.  

 

Performance Improvement and Efficiency Committee: The Committee shall work with 

Corporation members to help carry out statutory duties of developing workload measures and 

clerk workload performance standards as well as seeking methods to develop where feasible 

further efficiencies in Clerks’ court-related duties.  

 

Legislative Committee: The Committee shall act on behalf of the Council as requested to provide 

recommendations to the Legislature as required by statute and the Plan of Operations. The 

Committee shall further review Legislative priorities, committee hearings, bills, and other issues 

as they relate to Clerks and CCOC activities.  

 

Clerk Education Program Committee: The Committee shall work with Corporation members to 

help carry out statutory duties of developing and conducting clerk education programs.  

 

Revenue Enhancement Committee: The Committee shall work with the Council to recommend 

to the Legislature changes in the various amounts of court-related fines, fees, service fees, and 

costs.  

 

Page 60 of 67



Executive Committee: The Committee shall consist of the Council Officers as established in 

Section 3-1. The purpose of the Committee is to act on behalf of the Council when decisions 

need to be made on issues requiring immediate attention or on administrative issues. The Council 

shall be notified of any action taken by the Executive Committee within one work day of the 

action. All decisions of the Executive Committee shall be provided to the Council at the 

Council’s next meeting for confirmation.  

 

 

Section 2-2: Membership  
 

The Council shall be composed of eight Clerks elected by the Corporation members within their 

population group..  Two Clerks shall be from each of the following four population categories 

and shall serve for a term of two years.  

 

Group A: Less than 100,000 citizens  

 

Group B: 100,000 but fewer than 500,000  

 

Group C: 500,000 but fewer than 1 million  

 

Group D: 1 million or more  

 

The Executive Council shall consist of staggered two (2) year terms, commencing by 2012. The  

Executive Council, by resolution, shall establish the process, the terms and division within 

Groups to implement the staggered terms, including initially the use of some terms of one (1) 

year and thereafter two (2) year terms.  

 

The Council shall also include, as ex officio members, a designee of the President of the Senate, 

and a designee of the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and a designee of the. The Chief 

Justice of the Supreme Court shall designate one additional member to represent the State courts 

system.  

 

 

Section 2-3: Election of Council  
 

At the annual meeting, the currently sitting Council members shall conduct the meeting then the 

incoming board members will be sworn in. , shall elect officers for a one (1) year term, and shall 

set the schedule for meetings of the Council and the Corporation for the coming year. If at any 

time during during the year an officer’s position becomes vacant the Council at their next 

meeting shall select a Council member to fill the vacant position.  

 

Council members, other than designees of the President of the Senate, the Speaker of the House 

of Representatives and Chief Justice of the Supreme Court, assuming office at the annual 

meeting, shall be elected pursuant to the following:  

 

Page 61 of 67



A. Counties comprising population categories delineated herein shall be based on individual 

county population estimates for the year in which the election is held as published by the Bureau 

of Economic and Business Research, University of Florida.  

 

B. On or before April 1 of each year, the Secretary/Treasurer shall provide written notice to all 

Clerks of the Court of the upcoming election. Notification of the election shall include an 

election schedule as well as notice to Clerks of the Court to submit to the Council 

Secretary/Treasurer by April 15 their intent to be a candidate for election to the Council.  

 

C. By May 15 of each year, the Secretary/Treasurer shall prepare an election ballot which shall 

contain the names of all Clerks of Court divided into appropriate population categories of their 

respective counties. The names of those Clerks of Court who have expressed their intent to be a 

declared candidate for Council election shall be so indicated on the ballot. The ballot shall be 

distributed to all Clerks of Court in such a manner as to provide documentation of proper 

delivery and to ensure receipt by the Clerks of Court a minimum of fifteen (15) days prior to the 

ballot return deadline. The ballot package shall be clearly marked as an official ballot and shall 

include an envelope with the proper return address.  

 

D. All ballots shall be returned to the specific address of a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) 

selected by the Council by the designated date for the official opening and counting of the 

ballots. All ballots must be received in the envelope provided and shall be sealed. The CPA shall 

maintain custody of all ballots in a sealed condition until the designated date and time for 

opening and counting. The Council, with the assistance of the CPA, and in order to comply with 

Chapter 119, F.S., may establish electronic voting.  

 

E. On the date and at the time and location noticed for the official opening and counting of the 

ballots, the designated CPA shall open and count all ballots and shall certify the official results 

of the election. Electronic votes shall be counted and certified, as established above. The 

designated CPA shall serve notice of certification to the Council and, the Corporation Members.  

 

F. Special elections as may be necessary and called pursuant to Section 2-4 shall be conducted 

within the requirements and framework of the above provisions including applicable schedule 

timelines. Special elections may be held to fill a vacated term on the Council for the remaining 

term of the vacated office.  

 

G. If a candidate is unopposed, then no ballot process/election process shall be required.  

 

 

Section 2-4: Council Meetings  
 

A. The Council shall meet in accordance with the annually published schedule of meetings. 

Other meetings may be called by the Chair and/or by petition of a minimum of three (3) Council 

members. 

  

B. Notice of the Council meetings shall be given seven (7) days prior to the meeting date to the 

Council and members of the Corporation and said notice shall include the agenda which shall 

Page 62 of 67



advise the Council and Corporation members in detail the substance and nature of each agenda 

item. For other meetings of the Council, as provided herein, notices shall be provided a minimum 

of seven (7) days of such meetings with agenda provisions as previously noted. The seven (7) 

day notice can be waived by seven (7) members of the Council at the commencement of the 

meeting.  

 

C. In any Council meetings all reasonable efforts shall be made to have telephone access 

available to all members. Council members should attend personally but may attend and vote 

electronically.  

 

D. All meetings of the Council shall be open to the public governed pursuant to Florida law.  

 

 

Section 2-5: Member Attendance and Participation  
 

Attendance and participation of Council members shall be governed by the following provisions:  

 

A. A vacancy in office is declared when a member has three consecutive unexcused absences 

from meetings of the Council; dies while in office; or no longer holds the office which would 

entitle him or her to be a member of the Council. An excusal shall be granted by the Chair.  

 

B. Upon such a vacancy occurring becoming imminent, the Secretary/Treasurer or the Chair 

shall provide written notification to the Council.  

 

C. Upon such notification by the Secretary/Treasurer or the Chair, the Council shall notify the 

Corporation members of the vacancy.  

 

D. If such occurs, and the remaining time on the term is less than six (6) months, the vacancy 

will be left open until the next regular election. If the term remaining is more than six (6) 

months, the Council shall direct the Secretary/Treasurer or Chair to conduct a special election 

pursuant to Section 2-3 to fill the unexpired term. The timeframe for such process pursuant to 

Sections 2-3 may be shortened such that the process is concluded within 30 days total. 

 

E. The attendance by a member’s designated representative at any regular and/or special meeting 

of the Council and/or Committee of the Council does not constitute official attendance by that 

member and such representative shall not be permitted to cast a vote on behalf of the represented 

member.  

 

 

Section 2-6: Quorum  
 

Executive Council: A quorum shall consist of at least five (5) members of the Council being 

physically present. After a quorum is established other members can participate and vote by 

phone. However, in an emergency situation, subject to the call of the Chair, a meeting of the 

Council can be held by phone and a quorum be present if at least 5 members call in.  

 

Page 63 of 67



Corporation Annual Meeting:  After provided proper notice as outlined under Section 1-5, a 

quorum will consist of those Corporation members present in person and by phone.  

 

 

ARTICLE III 

COUNCIL OFFICERS 

 

Section 3-1: Executive Officers  
 

The Executive Officers shall be the Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary/Treasurer. Said officers 

shall be elected by majority vote of the Council at the first meeting of the Council at the 

beginning of each new Council year with each officer serving a one (1) year, and shall develop a 

schedule for meetings of the Council and Corporation for the coming year.   term and.  Executive 

Officers may serve successive terms. All officers of the Council are also officers of the 

Corporation. If at any time during the one year an officer’s position becomes vacant, the Council 

at their next meeting shall select a Council member to fill the vacant position. 

 

A. Chair: The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Corporation and the Council and shall 

serve as the Council’s Executive Officer. If the Chair and the Vice Chair will not be present for a 

meeting, the Chair may designate another officer or member to preside in the Chair’s absence. 

The Chair shall have authority to appoint regular or special committees as deemed necessary, 

appoint committee members, and appoint the chair and vice chairs of each committee.  

 

B. Vice Chair: The Vice Chair shall exercise all the powers and duties of the Chair during the 

Chair’s absence or inability to act and shall perform such other duties as may be assigned by the 

Council or Chair.  

 

C: Secretary/Treasurer: The Secretary/Treasurer shall oversee the keeping of a true up-to-date 

record of all proceedings of the Council and the Corporation and shall be chief financial agent of 

the Corporation. As chief financial agent, he or she shall oversee the financial matters of the 

Corporation, shall be the Chair of any audit committee, and shall propose the annual budget of 

the Corporation.  

 

 

Section 3-2: Other Officers  
 

The ex-officio non-voting Officers of the Council shall be an Executive Director, and a General 

Counsel. Said officials shall be appointed by the Council based on the professional requirements 

of the applicable position and subject to such other provisions herein.  

 

A. Executive Director: The Executive Director shall serve as the program coordinator 

Administrator for the functions of the Council. Employment and/or contracting for position shall 

be pursuant to Section 4-2 and the Corporation's Annual Budget, pursuant to Section 4-1 B. The 

Executive Director is a managerial and policy making employee who serves at the pleasure of 

the Council without civil service protection. A performance evaluation shall be conducted 

annually of the Executive Director by July 1st..  The Chairman shall request from each Council 

Page 64 of 67



member an evaluation that shall be submitted directly to the CCOC General Counsel Chair. The 

General Counsel shall provide a compilation of the evaluations to the Chairman and Executive 

Director. The Chairman shall go over the evaluations with the Director. The Chairman will 

provide the compilation of the evaluations to the Council members.  

 

The Executive Director has responsibility to effect or recommend personnel, budget, 

expenditure, or policy decisions in his or her area of responsibility. The Executive Director shall 

be included in the Senior Management Services Class of the Florida Retirement System. The 

Executive Director shall be responsible for the day to day operations of the Corporation as well 

as act as a liaison between the Corporation and the Florida Court Clerks & Comptroller’s.  

 

B. General Counsel: The General Counsel shall provide legal services in accordance with the 

policy directives of the Council relative to the operations and the statutory duties and 

responsibilities of the Corporation.  

 

 

ARTICLE IV 

ADMINISTRATION 

 

Section 4-1: Financial Administration  
 

A. Fiscal Year: The Corporation’s fiscal and program year shall commence beginning October 1 

and end on September 30.  

 

B. Budget and Program Administration: The Corporation, at its annual meeting shall adopt an 

annual operating budget and program work plan for each fiscal year as presented by the 

Executive Director and recommended by the Council. Each budget and work plan shall be 

structured as to provide a detailed delineation of projected revenues and proposed expenditures 

by classification and program objective. The program work plan shall clearly outline the annual 

objectives of the Council relative to duties and responsibilities. The work plan will provide an 

anticipated schedule for completion of those objectives.  

 

Each quarter, unless otherwise requested by the Corporation and/or the Council, the  

Secretary/ Treasurer shall report to the Corporation and the Council as to the status of the budget 

and make such recommendations for required modifications.  

 

C. Accounting and Financial Reporting: The financial reporting system for funds received by the 

Florida Clerk of Court Operations Corporation to execute its statutory responsibilities and the 

associated annual audit shall be in accordance with the following provisions:  

 

(1) The Council shall maintain a financial reporting system that records, establishes 

accountability for and provides controls over all funds received in accordance with Generally 

Accepted Accounting Principles and applicable state law.  

 

(2) The Council shall cause to be made each year an independent audit of the preceding year’s 

financial statements and records associated with the financial reporting system provided herein 

Page 65 of 67



by a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in accordance with Generally Accepted Governmental 

Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller’s Office of the United States of America.  

 

The Council shall timely submit the resulting annual audit report, management letter and Council 

response to the Auditor General, the Corporation members and such other entities that may be 

designated by law.  

 

D. Administration of Procurement and Contracting: The Council shall develop and adopt policies 

and guidelines for procurement and contracting in accordance with law.  

 

 

Section 4-2: Personnel Administration  
 

Each year, as an element of the Corporation’s annual budget and work plan, the Council shall 

submit to the Corporation for consideration, a staffing plan for the next fiscal year. Said plan 

shall delineate for each position the position title; position classification; and compensation.  

 

 

Section 4-3: Program/Policy Coordination  
 

For efficiency and economic benefit to the public, the Chair of the Corporation and its Executive 

Director shall meet with the President of the Florida Association of Court Clerks, Inc., and its 

Executive Director regularly to coordinate efforts related to economic budget and legislative 

issues.  

 

 

ARTICLE V 

OPERATIONS 
 

Pursuant to the functions of the Corporation as provided by statute and performed by the 

Council, and pursuant to the Plan of Operation, the following specific provisions shall govern the 

Council in the administration of such functions.  

 

 

Section 5-1: Plan of Operation  
 

The Council shall submit to the Corporation each year during its annual business meeting such 

changes and modifications as deemed necessary.  

 

 

Section 5-2: Legislative Recommendations  
 

The Council shall develop such legislative changes it deems appropriate for recommendation to 

the Florida Legislature. Such recommendations shall be coordinated with the Legislative 

Committee of the Florida Association of Court Clerks, Inc., for the purpose of obtaining input 

Page 66 of 67



regarding Legislative initiatives. The proposed changes shall be agendaed for consideration at 

the next scheduled regular meeting of the Council prior to November 30 of each year.  

 

 

Section 5-3: Research and Analytical Services  
 

The Corporation may contract to provide ongoing research and analytical evaluation relative to 

the budgetary requirements, performance measures, and applicable performance standards on the 

Clerks of the Court, including review and monitoring of expenditures, fines, fees, service 

charges, and court costs as provided by law. Said contract may provide for the development and 

implementation of an on-line electronic statewide reporting system utilizing the Comprehensive 

Case Information System (CCIS).  

 

 

Section 5-4: Clerk of Court Education Programs  
The Corporation, pursuant to Clerk of Court education function assigned to the Corporation may 

contract for developing and conducting said education programs. Programs administered 

pursuant to such contract(s) may be based on the following requirement classifications and 

within the general provisions as herein provided.  

 

A. Certification Training – The contract may provide for the development, implementation, and 

administration of a program of training and education as required by s. 145.051, F.S., and 

delineated in Administrative Order of the Florida Supreme Court, dated November 18, 1996.  

 

B. Budgetary Training – The contract may provide for the development, implementation, and 

administration of training requirements deemed necessary by the Council for the effective on-

going implementation and administration of the Clerk of Court budgetary and reporting process. 

 

C. Notification- Any contracts entered into by the Corporation for educational training of Clerks 

and staff shall include in the contract and training announcements, publication, and materials that 

funding for such training is paid for by the Corporation. 

Page 67 of 67


	DraftAgendaCorporation Meeting
	3 Draft Corporation Minutes for 06.27.16
	4a MEMO  CFY 15-16 Annual Financials
	4a attachment
	4b MEMO CFY 15-16 end of year financials
	4b Attachment CFY 15-16 end of year financials
	4c MEMO CFY 16-17 financials through April 2017
	4c Attachment October through April 2017 Reconciliation
	5 MEMO  17 18 CCOC Office Budget Request
	5 Attachment CCOC 17-18 Budget Request (002)
	6  MEMO Schedule of Meeting Dates for the coming year
	6 Attachment 2017-2018 Calendar of Events
	8 Other Business MEMO  Plan of Operation
	8 Other Business Attachment CCOC Plan of Operations Suggested Edits



